# Law and Practice of Selection to Separation Selection to Separation



Labour Law Agency, Bombay

# Law and Practice of Employment (Selection to Separation)

by N.K. Khare Management Consultant

# LABOUR LAW AGENCY

1-A Arun Chambers, Tardeo Road Bombay 400 034.

### PREFACE

There are a number of books written both foreign and indigenous on the subject of Personnel Management and therefore, a question may arise why yet another book on the subject. The answer lies in the fact that whereas these books no doubt deal with the subjects covered by the present one, and very much more, but the manner of such treatment differs from what I have attempted to do viz. to state in simple terms, without professional jargon and legal quibbling, so that a non-personnel professional by reading the relevant subject should get proper guidance. I hope, I have been able to achieve this objective.

On my retirement from Sandoz (India) Limited where I held the position of Chief Of Personnel and Head Office Administration, I was approached by a member of organisations, and majority of them were small businessmen and social organisations which were visited with problems of how to handle their employees so that they do not commit some basic errors. These small businessmen as well as social organisations, I found, were as unorganised in the field of personnel management as the unorganised labour who do not know their rights and responsibilities. I also noticed that basic requirements like procedure for employment, follow-up actions, maintenance of records, etc. were lacking. I also found in my discussions with them that they were not aware as to how one goes about determining the required manpower, classifying them, what is actually the difference between temporary, casual, part-time and permanent employees, what precautions are required to be taken, what are the rights of the employers as well as employees with regard to hours of work, payment of wages, what importance is required to be given to employees, what are their likely needs, how to go about them, etc. This has led me to write this book so that it can serve as a guide essentially to small scale and what I call unorganised body of employees so that they could themselves tackle majority of issues in the day to day dealings with their employees by first taking necessary precautions from the word go and prepare themselves in a sort of "scientific management" of their work force however small and guard against basic acts of commission and omission when, inspite of such precautions they are faced with problems of industrial relations.

I have purposely avoided tackling with legal issues such as applicability of different labour legislation, (excepting mentioning it when it becomes necessary by way of certain obligations in the matter of employment itself) industrial relations, collective bargaining, trade unions and the like topics, as I believe there are a number of books already written on the subject. Moreover, in such cases one has necessarily, to approach appropriate experts when the matters go beyond a domestic problem between the employer and the employee/s. In other words, my thrust has essentially been at tackling human relations aspect between the employer and employees, i.e. face to face relations only. I hope I have succeeded in this objective at least in some measure.

I am grateful to my friends Mr. P.M. Mantri and Mr. M.L. Gore, veterans in the profession, who readily agreed to go through the manuscript and make valuable suggestions in the preparation of this book.

### CONTENTS

I. EMPLOYMENT	
Organisation Structure and Job Relationships	1
Total Organization Strength	-
Employment Policy	1
Recruitment Procedure	
Selection of Candidates for interview	
Interviewers	
How to Conduct Interviews	
Short List	
Final Selection	
Offer of Employment	4
Medical Examination	
Letter of appointment on Probation	
On Joining Employment	
Checking of References	1.11
Induction	
Sales Promotion Employees	
Evaluation During Probation	
Confirmation/Termination	
Temporary Employment	
Part Time Employment	
Definition	
What wages to pay	
Is he to be treated on par with others?	
Employment of a retired person	Trial and a
Apprentice/Learner	
A Note On Job Description	1
Review	11
Position Description	12
(Specimen Job Description) Director Of Marketing	1
Job Description Of Production Director	13
A Note on Job Description For Non-Executive Jobs	2
Job Identification	2
Job Summary	2
Work Performed or duties of the job	2:
Job Specification	2:
Specimen Job Description Driver	2:
Interview	2:
Interview Rating	2
Interview Evaluation	2
Application For Employment	20

Letter of Appointment on Probation	35
Letter of Appointment-Sales Promotion Employee	36
Letter of Appointment on Probation-Management Staff	37
Declaration By a Person Taking Employment In An Establishment In Which	
Employees' Provident Fund Scheme & Family Pension Scheme are in force	39
Enquiry about the Conduct and Character	45
Job Description Of Sales Promotion Employee	46
Performance Evaluation Of Trainee Representatives Sales Promotion Employees	
On Probation	49
Performance Evaluation Of Sales Promotion Employee On Probation	52
Letter of Confirmation	55
Letter of Confirmation-Management Staff	56
Contract of Employment	57
Salary, Allowance & Bonus	57
Travelling Expenses	57
Medical Expenses	57
Provident Fund	57
Leave	58
Duties & Obligations	58
Improvements, Inventions, Discovories	59
Termination with Notice	60
Termination without Notice	60
Consequences upon Termination	61
Retirement	61
Service of Notices & Communications	61
Interpretation of terms/conditions	61
Additional Rules & Regulations	61
Jurisdiction	62
Letter of Appointment-Temporary	62
Termination of Appointment-Temporary	63
Contract of Employment	63
Appointment as an Apprentice	64
Specimen Of Contract Of Apprenticeship In The Case Of Major Apprentices	
For Commercial Trades	65
Obligations Of Employer	67
Obligations Of Apprentice	69
II. MANAGEMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES	70
Follow-up Action	70
Motivating Factors	70
Employee Involvement	70
Suggestion Scheme	71
Employee as a Resource	71
Grievance Procedure	71
Open Society	72
Communication	72

Management Of Human Resources	72
Performance Appraisal and Development of Employees	72
Review of Appraisals	73
Methodology	73
Management of Human Resources	74
Promotions And Transfers	74
Promotions	74
Basis for non-management jobs	74
Probationary Period	74
Salary on Promotion	74
Management Job-Promotions	75
Transfers	76
General	76
From one Department to another	76
Transfer of Sales Promotion Employees	76
Terms on transfer	77
What Courts of Law have to say on Transfers	77
Procedure For Settlement Of Grievances	81
Procedure	82
Management Appraisal System	83
Introduction	83
System	83
Procedure & Method	84
Guide	84
General	84
General Responsibilities & Objectives	85
Performance Appraisal	85
Job Knowledge	85
Strengths and Areas of Improvement	85
Managerial Behaviour	85
Attitudes	86
Health	86
Overali Assessment	86
Record of Appraisal	87
Potential & Development	87
Task-Setting	87
Broad Guidelines for Task Setting	88
Guidelines For Writing Objectives	89
Simple Agreement On Commitment (Regional Sales Manager's Agreement)	90
Simple Agreement On Commitment (Purchasing Manager's Agreement)	91
Suggestions For Handling Typical Reactions	92
Management Performance Appraisal	96
Performance Appraisals For Sales Representatives	99
Guide	100
Sales Performance	100

# (VI)

General Comments	100
Tips for Appraisal Interview	101
III. CESSATION OF EMPLOYMENT	114
Types of Cessation of Employment	114
Temporary Employment	114
Casual Workmen	114
Termination by the employer	114
Discharge for overstay of leave	115
Resignations	116
Withdrawal of Resignation	116
Resignation in anticipation of dismissal	116
Notice Pay	116
Retirement	117
On Death	117
Retrenchment	117
Early retirement on grounds of ill health	118
Dismissal	118
Acceptance Of Resignation	119
Retirement On Superannuation	119
IV. DISCIPLINE	120
What is Discipline	121
Patterns of Individual Codes of Conduct	121
Rules of behaviour	121
How to promote positive discipline?	121
Determine Objective-Get The Facts	122
Principles For Maintaning Discipline	123
Handling Human Relations	123
V. DOMESTIC ENQUIRY	124
Standing Orders	124
Disciplinary Action	125
Verbal Warning	125
Written Warning	125
Refusal to Accept A Warning Letter	125
Fines	126
Preliminary Investigations	126
Written Explanation	126
Charge-sheet	126
Service of a Charge-Sheet	127
Suspension Pending Enquiry	127
Payments During Suspension	127
Enquiry Procedure	128
Representation of Charge-sheeted Employee	128
Representation of the Employer	129
Company's Evidence	129
Employee's Evidence	130

## (VII)

Notes of Proceedings	130
Ex-Parte Enquiry	131
Principles of Natural Justice	131
Punishment	132
Appeal	132
Who should take various actions	133
Interference by An Outside Party	133
Difference Between Adjudication/Arbitration	134
Termination	135
Specimen Of Record Of Verbal Warning	135
Specimen Of A Warning Letter	136
Specimen Of Chargesheet	136
Specimen Of Enquiry & Proceedings	137
Specimen Of Findings	138
Order	139
Letter Of Dismissal	139
Model Standing Orders Maharashtra	141
For workmen doing manual or technical work	141
For workmen employed on Clerical or Supervisory work.	151
Model Standing Orders (CENTRAL)	162
Model Standing Orders in respect of Industrial Establishments not being	
Industrial Establishments in Coal Mines	162
SCHEDULE I-A	169

# Law and Practice of Employment

(Selection to Separation)

### I EMPLOYMENT

### 1 Organization Structure and Job Relationships:

1.1. An industrial or commercial organization whether it be small, medium size or large does not consist only of land, buildings, plant and machinery or materials or even computers, but also of human beings and this latter factor is the most important of them all. The human factor involves definite relationships between different job holders. who have certain functions, or tasks, responsibilities and certain authorities. Therefore it becomes necessary to have a structure indicating all these issues, and though normally on an organization chart jobs upto certain categories, essentially what is called management jobs, are indicated, it is necessary to have departmental charts as well which will show supervisory, clerical, field sales staff, as well as shop floor jobs. These charts must be accompanied by job description for each of the jobs or at least each group of jobs. A note on job descriptions for management jobs is given in Annexure A with typical job descriptions for certain jobs. Similarly, a note on job descriptions for clerical, field sales staff and shop floor jobs are given in Annexure B.

### 1.2 Total Organization Strength:

Having taken action as per 1.1 above, it is advisable to determine the strength of each and every department and lay down procedure for additional requirements of personnel. For additional hands the departmental manager must justify to the top management the need for such additional hands and must indicate whether these additions will be temporary, casual or permanent basis and this should be done after cost/benefit analysis of the issues involved such as whether to introduce more machines than men, capital expenditure versus revenue expenditure, duration of employment, etc. It is emphasised that while taking additional people a thorough study of all the factors, including legal issues involved, is required because human resources are not easy to manage and therefore they should be kept within manageable limits. This will apply to all the jobs in the organization, i.e. from the lowest unskilled, semiskilled to higher jobs.

### 2. Employment Policy:

- 2.1 It is necessary to lay down on paper employment policy so that a proper guideline will be available to those who are required to recruit sanctioned personnel strength in each and every category in the organization. This will bring about a pre-determined standard of personnel working in the organization. The employment policy will have the following ingredients:
  - 2.1.1 Employ the best available candidate for a given job, including those in unskilled category.
  - 2.1.2 Under what circumstances a given job will be done departmentally and when it should be done by contract labour. For guidelines on contract labour see Annexure C.

- 2.1.3 Lay down minimum qualifications for the job.
- 2.1.4 What should be the sources of recruitment such as:
  - (a) Dissemination of information relating to a vacancy among existing employees by verbal notification or by announcing it on Notice Board;
  - (b) Advertisement in local papers;
  - (c) Through Schools/Colleges or technical institutes;
  - (d) Through Local Employment Exchange;
  - (e) Referring to the file containing applications which are received from time to time unsolicitated:
  - (f) Employment of local people (sons of the soil).
- 2.1.5 Which jobs will be filled in by men only, or female only.
- 2.1.6 As far as possible not to employ relations, or to limit employment to say not more than one.
- 2.1.7 Specifications required of a person, viz:-
  - (a) Physical make-up such as height, weight, especially for shopfloor jobs where heavy work might be involved; or appearance, speech, poise, age-range, etc., for sales or office jobs.
  - (b) Education and experience or any special professional skill required, trade tests, etc.
  - (c) Special aptitudes such as dexterity, facility in mathematics, communication both oral and/or written.

### 3. Recruitment Procedure:

### 3.1. Selection of Candidates for interview

When applications are received it is necessary to whet through them to find out candidates who satisfy the required qualifications, experience etc, and this should advisably be done by the Head of the Department or his deputy where the candidate is going to work.

Depending upon the response and the type of the job at least 5 to 7 candidates should be called for interview. For interview call letter see Annexure D. For unskilled or semiskilled jobs it is possible to get them at the gates of the organisation, but even for such job a regular procedure should be followed to avoid future problems.

### 3.2 Interviewers

Decide who will interview the candidates. For example for a job in Finance Department the Finance Manager or his deputy and the Administration Manager; or for a production job the Shopforeman/Manager and Factory Administration Manager — where Personnel Department under a Personnel Officer/Manager does not exist may be assigned the task of selection.

### 3.3 How to Conduct Interviews

The interview should be conducted by the persons assigned for the purpose of selection. At the outset they should give the candidate information on the Company, its products or lines of business, customers, brief description of the job for which the candidate is being considered. Before shooting questions at the candidate ensure that he

is not tense but is relaxed, and that interview should be an open and frank discussion and not a trial of wits. Having achieved this, proceed to ascertain information on the following aspects:—

- (a) Whether the candidate satisfies the job requirements, including qualifications, experience, different abilities, etc. on the basis of job description/job requirements.
- (b) What is the extent of his knowledge of the given job and whether he possesses relevant experience?
- (c) Whether he will be suited to the requirements and can be fitted in the existing team of employees?
- (d) Whether he possesses technical qualifications required for the job?
- (e) For higher or managerial job whether he possesses ability to lead people, take decision, ability to judge, etc.
- 3.4 One has to be wary of certain knock-out factors in a candidate which make him unsuitable for further consideration, even though he may otherwise be an acceptable candidate. These knock-out factors could be:—
  - (1) Alcoholic record
  - (2) Lack of integrity
  - (3) Poor vocal quality/ability
  - (4) Poor expression of thoughts
  - (5) Job hopping with very short intervals
  - (6) Adverse Police record
  - (7) Accident prone, etc.

### 3.5 Short List

Based on the evaluation of the candidates as per the form in Annexure E, short list 2 or 3 candidates for final interview by the Departmental Manager and the Top boss of the Company. Give the candidates application for Employment Form – Annexure F – so that full details will be available at one place – and ensure that the candidates return the form before leaving company premises. They should be asked to report for final interview at the pre-determined date and time fixed in consultation with the Final Interview Board.

### 3.6 Final Selection

The Final Interview Board should interview the candidates short listed, and make final selection. Those who are not selected, but interviewed under 3.4 and 3.5 should be sent a regret letter, Annexure G so that the company's image is built up in the minds of the candidates who are not selected, viz., that they received due consideration for their candidature. It should be borne in mind that the interview process has a public relations aspects to a certain extent because the candidates interviewed are bound to discuss the entire process, the Company, etc., with their relations friends, etc.

In addition to the above the following points should also be borne in mind while interviewing candidates.:

While stressing the importance of courtesy, candidates for interview should not be

· kept waiting for long periods

- · interviewed in unacceptable conditions
- subjected to questions which might be seen as threatening or hostile.

### 3.7 Offer of Employment

Discuss with the candidate who has been finally selected for the job the ferms and conditions of service. Normally an experienced candidate will ask for a particular salary, allowances and perquisites. Obtain full details of his existing basic salary, allowances, retirement benefits, etc. The organization should study the "expected salary" column in the application form and determine in advance how much salary, perquisites, etc. it is prepared to offer and only in that event discussions on terms and conditions or even final selection of a particular candidate should be dependent. While offering salary, allowances and perquisites care should be taken that we are not upsetting the existing employees with equivalent skills, experience, etc. After the terms and conditions have been determined and accepted by the candidate further steps as follows are necessary.

### 3.7.1 Medical Examination

Care should be taken that the selected candidate is medically fit to do the job, as well as to ensure that we are not taking responsibility for the Company for unknown health hazards the candidate may have.

Therefore at Company's expense the medical examination should be arranged. Life Insurance Corporation doctors or Government Hospital Doctor or Civil Surgeon should be approached for the purpose and medical report – (Annexure H) – should be obtained from the doctor and only a fit candidate should be taken in employment. The form covers relevant family medical history so that maximum care is taken about his suitability.

### 3.7.2 Letter of appointment on Probation

Issue letter of appointment on probation and mention the date from which you expect the candidate to join duty. Normally an experienced person would require one month's notice to leave his present job. The letters on probation for different categories of employees are given in Annexure I. Appropriate letter should be given.

- **Note:** (a) Normally for shopfloor and office-jobs probationary period of 3 months is applicable under the Model Standing Orders in the State of Maharashtra.
  - (b) For Sales Personnel the probationary and training period can be stretched to 12 months out of which first six months will be training and familiarisation with Company's products, customers, distributors, area, etc., and next six months on probation in order to judge his actual performance in the field to determine suitability or otherwise as a company employee.
  - (c) In the case of Management staff i.e. junior and senior Executives, probationary period of upto 12 months can be

fixed. There is always a tendency to extend probationary period. If proper care and concern is shown this should not be necessary. In any case, extension of probationary period should be only in exceptional cases, and higher management must get convinced before agreeing for extension.

### 4. On Joining Employment

- 4.1 The new employee should be seen by the Personnel Officer/Administrative Officer/Manager, welcomed to the organization and given a preliminary talk about the Company, the department in which he will be working, etc.
- 4.2 It is necessary to get the following forms filled in by him as they are required by relevant laws:—
  - (a) Declaration and Nomination Form under the Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952.
  - (b) Declaration and Nomination Form under the Employees' Family Pension Scheme, 1971.
  - (c) Enrolment form under Employees' State Insurance Act, 1952; and
  - (d) Nomination form under sub-rule (1) of rule 6 of payment of Gratuity (Maharashtra) Rules, 1972 See Annexure U.

These forms are required to be sent to the statutory authorities, and it is also necessary to file a copy thereof on the employee's personal file to form a permanent record.

**Note:** It is advisable for the organisation to open a file for each and every permanent employee which should contain his application for employment form, medical report, interview notes, references received, copies of his certificates, etc. and the file should be properly maintained.

### 4.3 Checking of References

In the application for employment form the employee is required to give two references of persons who are not his relations, but known to him. They should be asked to send their assessment of the employee – see Annexure K. Similarly reference should be made either in writing or over the telephone, to his previous employer to check the reasons for his leaving job and request him to communicate how the employee generally performed his duties, etc. See Annexure L.

### 4.4 Induction

As mentioned at 4.1 the new employee should be greeted by the Personnel Officer/Administration Officer and informed about the company, where and when he will get his monthly salary, arrangements about canteen, rest rooms, locker rooms, uniforms, hours of work, reporting time, general rules and regulations, standing orders, etc.

Thereafter he should be taken to the Department where he will be working and handed over to the Department Head or his deputy. In the department he should be introduced to his shopfloor foreman/supervisor, and his colleagues. He should be explained the working of the department in general, how it is integrated with other depart-

ments, and what part it plays in the final product manufactured by the Company. He should also be explained the safety precautions, rules and regulations governing safety and safety equipment. Thereafter he should be started on the job-training. The Department Head must make it a point to meet the new employee at least once a month during his probationary period and encourage him to integrate into the team.

### Sales Promotion Employee

The Sales Promotion Employee (SPE) should be given detailed training in sales, product knowledge, customers, stockists, distributors, etc. Also he should be fully apprised of the sales promotion campaigns, visual aids detailing literature and importance of his field work. A detailed job description with do's and don'ts will help him in self development. For a specimen of a SPE's job description see Annexure M.

### 4.5 Evaluation During Probation

During probationary period it is necessary to evaluate the candidate after the end of say one and half months, called mid-term report and before the end of the probationary period called final report, to assess if he is suitable for the job and for this purpose written reports are necessary. See Annexure N. It is necessary to discuss with the employee those reports and do not treat them as confidential between him and the Company, so that he cannot make a grievance at a later date that he did not know the reasons for termination while on probation.

Note: In the State of Maharashtra the Model Standing Orders prescribe a probationary period of three months only. Outside Maharashtra it may be possible to fix such period of upto 6 months, with provision for further extension, which must be written down in probationary appointment letter.

In the case of Sales Promotion Employees the total period of upto 12 months can be fixed out of which first six months can be treated as trainee, followed by another period of six months on probation when his effectivity or otherwise on the job can be tested. A meticulous study is necessary as a SPE works more or less on his own with little supervision and therefore it becomes necessary to ensure, before he is confirmed in service, that he not only knows Company's business requirements, but can be depended upon for a variety of attributes for the successful pursuit of the Company's aims and objects, business interests and Company's image in the territory he operates. Such a judgement can be made based upon periodic written reports from field supervisors – See Annexure O. As mentioned earlier these reports must be discussed with the SPE.

### 4.6 Confirmation/Termination

### 4.6.1 Confirmation

On the basis of the written reports during probationary period a judgement is required to be made whether the employee is fit to be confirmed or not. If the employee has received good reports during training/probation he should be confirmed in writing. On confirmation he will be eligible to receive one month's notice of the organization's intention to terminate his contract, as well as it will impose an obligation on him to give one month's notice if he wishes to leave. Apart from this a permanent employee gets a definite status in the organization where he can progress and build up his career. For model confirmation letter see Annexure P.

### 4.6.2 Termination

If the employee is found to be not fit for confirmation his services can be terminated any time during the probation by giving him 24 hours' notice. It is necessary to bear in mind that such an employee can question his termination before the Labour Commissioner who will enquire whether the decision to terminate has been based upon some evidence or it is *malafide*, arbitary or by way of victimisation. In such an event the written reports and discussion of such reports with the employee prove very handy and useful and it becomes difficult if not impossible to successfully challenge management's action – See Annexure Q for termination letter.

### 5. Temporary Employment

- 5.1 A temporary employee is defined in the Model Standing Orders as one who has ben appointed for a limited period for work which is of an essentially temporary nature, or who is employed temporarily as an additional hand in connection with temporary increase in work of a permanent nature.
- 5.2 It is necessary to emphasize that in the State of Maharashtra a worker taken as a badli or temporary who has put in 240 days' uninterrupted service in the aggregate during a period of twelve months is required under the Model Standing Orders to be made permanent by an order in writing signed by the Manager. The Standing Orders provide that any period of interrupted service, caused by cessation of work which is not due to any fault of the workman concerned, shall be counted for the purpose of computing 240 days for making a badli or temporary workman permanent.

In simple language it means that if an employer wants to engage temporary workman in his establishment, he has to plan his work schedules in advance and ensure that no work on temporary basis is involved or accepted for more than 7 months in a period of twelve months, and thus avoid the obligation of making temporary or badli workman permanent.

- 5.3 For the purpose of avoiding abuse of the limit of 240 days work by engaging one set of workers for a period of say three months, discharging them and engaging another set it has been provided in the Maharashtra Act. Model Standing Orders that the employer has to maintain a waiting list of all temporary workmen whose services have been terminated on account of the completion of the work for which they were appointed, or on account of the expiry of the period for which they were employed, containing the following particulars:
  - i) their names and addresses,
  - ii) the nature of work or occupation in which they were employed,
  - iii) wages paid, and
  - iv) the dates of termination.

Whenever any vacancies in the establishment are required to be filled those persons whose names are entered in the waiting list shall be given preference over outsiders and it is further laid down that no person whose name is not entered in the waiting list shall be appointed in the establishment as temporary or badli, unless all persons included in the list have been provided with employment in the establishment

The above provisions have been made in order to curb the practice of keeping in employment for years together temporary workmen. Therefore managements have to be very careful in the matter of temporary employment.

5.4 This also leads to the further requirement that when one thinks of engaging a temporary hand, one cannot compromise on requirements such as qualifications, skills, acceptability, etc., as a temporary employee becomes a potential permanent employee of the organization. It must also be remembered that if a temporary employee is found to be wanting in any of the acceptable attributes such as punctuality, ability to perform given job, ability to get on with people, ability to understand and follow instructions, etc., his services should be terminated even before his temporary period is over. A confidential record of each and every temporary employee is required to be maintained. Where services have been terminated for unsatisfactory performance a note to that effect should be made in the waiting list against such an employee.

In short employment of a temporary employee cannot be taken casually or lightly, but with all the attention needed for engaging a permanent hand.

**5.5.** Temporary Employment where Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act provisions do not apply.

Where the provisions of the Standing Orders Act do not apply because the establishment employs less than 50 persons, or outside the State of Maharashtra where 240 days provision is not applicable, it is possible to employ a workman on temporary basis for periods exceeding 240 days, provided, of course, the temporary work continues. However, it is advisable to put in writing this stipulation that on completion of the temporary work or the period mentioned, the employment will come to an end automatically. On such termination there is no longer any legal obligation to employ the same person because of amendment to the Industrial Disputes Act which has come into effect from August 1984 – See Section 2 (00) of the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947, as amended, in case an occasion arises for temporary employment. See Annexure R for a specimen of such letter.

### 6. Part Time Employment

### 6.1 Definition

A part time employee is one who is employed to do work for less than the normal period of working hours of the establishment. Therefore where work is not of a continuous nature, but available only for part of the time e.g. loading or unloading of materials during a particular period only, or volume of specific work justifies engagement of employees for a limited period of time and such other circumstances engagement of part-time employees can be sustained or justified. However where there is full time work available, it will not be wise or advisable to employ two persons on part time basis on the plea that half a loaf of bread is better than nothing. This argument is not accepted in industrial or commercial parlance.

6.2 What wages to pay

Wages to be paid to such employees can be a percentage of wages of full time employees doing similar jobs, but the percentage should be related to the hours of work put in by the full time/part time employee.

6.3 Is he to be treated on par with others?

It is necessary to emphasize that a part time employee is a "workman" under the Industrial Law for all practical purposes, such as leave, holidays, bonus, gratuity, etc., where part time employment is continuous. However, if part time employment is given on casual basis only, that is if and when work is available and the employee is not required to report at the factory or establishment every day, but only on certain specified days, then he will not be treated on par with regular employee of the establishment, and his eligibility to benefits other than wages, will depend upon how many days in a period of twelve calendar months he is engaged as casual/part time employee. If he puts in 240 days or more days' work he will be eligible to benefits like leave, gratuity, etc.

6.4 Employment of a retired person

A person who has retired from an establishment offering his services to a concern is as much as a part time or even full time employee. Therefore, it is necessary to enter into a written contract of employment making clear the terms and conditions of service during the tenure of his service with the organization. A specimen contract of employment is given in Annexure S.

7. Apprentice/Learner

Apprentice means a workman who is a learner and who may or may not be paid an allowance during the period of his training.

Provided that no workman shall be classified as an apprentice if he has had training for an aggregate period of one year.

One of the basic conditions is that he must not have had any previous training in the job that he will be required to do. In other words he has to be an apprentice or trainee or learner in the true sense of the term. Such training period is limited to one year. After that he could be absorbed as a regular employee if there is a vacancy or he should be asked to go, and this must be made clear in the letter of appointment itself — See Annexure T.

After one year's training he can be given temporary employment, if one is available, but all the provisions of temporary employment mentioned above will be applicable to him from the date of his absorption as a temporary employee.

An apprentice is not covered by the Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, though he may be covered under the Employees' State Insurance Act.

### Apprentice Act, 1961

Apart from the enabling provisions of the Model Standing Orders, the Apprentice Act, 1961, makes it obligatory for an industrial establishment

比为试读,需要完整PDF请访问: www.ertongbook.com